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Serious Discrepancies in Home Office and Department of Transport

Figures for Relative Cost Effectiveness of Flashing Signs and Speed Cameras

Dear Mrs. Dunwoody,

When I read in par.117 of your 18th October report on road safety the extraordinary statement that, despite being significantly more effective, vehicle activated signs (VAS) were marginally less cost effective than speed cameras, and then in section EV157 the ludicrous data submitted by the Department of Transport on which your view was based, I thought it best to write to your Committee to give you an opportunity to correct your mistake with the minimum of embarrassment.  Your utterly dismissive reply of 4th December, your refusal to face facts and the dangers inherent in basing road safety policy on seriously flawed data means that I now have no option but to raise these issue elsewhere, by means of this open letter which, with other related documents, can be found at www.safespeed.org.uk/vas.html
. 

That the Department of Transport, under Stephen Ladyman who authorised it, could submit such seriously misleading information to your Committee was astonishing. That (as far as I am aware) not a single member of your Committee or even your adviser Robert Gifford of PACTS (who to my knowledge has been aware of TRL548 for several years) realised the first time around that the data was grossly misleading, was worse. That, despite the considerable detail I provided in my first letter you,  and as your utterly dismissive reply of 4th December makes clear, you still fail to recognise that data for the self-evident tripe it  undoubtedly is, beggars belief.

I enclose a detailed statement setting out how the cumulative effect of the figures selected and used by the DfT was to swing the cost effectiveness balance in favour of speed cameras and against VAS by a factor of the order of fifty to one – a discrepancy so large that that I find it impossible to understand how it ever found it’s way into print. In summary here for your convenience therefore: 

1/ The figures of 2.2 and 3.1 for reductions in personal injury collisions per annum given by the DfT for effectiveness of cameras and signs, though understated, suggest, as does TRL548 that VAS are on average more effective than speed cameras. That being the case, the only way that VAS could end up being less cost effective than cameras would be if they were substantially more expensive than cameras, a proposition that would be laughable were the implications of such nonsense so serious.

2/ Though not made clear, the DfT’s figure of £14,000 for the VAS site was for two signs, not one as implied. In response to my Freedom of Information questions Norfolk County Council has confirmed that the budget cost to install a new VAS is £6,000, that new designs that can be fitted to existing lamp posts and signs can cost as little as £3,000 and that annual maintenance costs amount to about £200 p.a. confirming a cost per sign over 10 years of the order of £800 p.a, not the wholly ludicrous £14,000 figure given by the DfT. 

3/ No speed camera in the world has ever been installed and run for a year for the £7,500 quoted by the DfT. In response to my Freedom of Information request Oxfordshire County Council has confirmed that the £7,500 figure was for the camera housing and electrical connection only, the camera itself costing a further £32,000. Including other costs the first year cost was in reality in excess of £40,000, in line with figures that have been in the public domain for years. In addition I must point out that the 4th annual report into Camera Partnerships shows operating costs of £96m for 4,100 sites - but only 1,876 cameras, equating to some £25,000 p.a. per site but more significantly £50,000 p.a. per camera, in both cases a combination of capital and running costs. Of course much of that on-going cost relates to support staff, equipment, premises, police and court time rather than hardware and direct maintenance, but as cameras could serve no purpose without them, it would be accounting worthy of Enron at it’s worst to exclude those costs. 

4/ Even if the DfT figures had been accurate it would still have been ludicrous for the DfT to base their cost effectiveness comparison, as they did, on first year costs alone, when cameras have on-going costs of tens of thousands of pounds p.a. and VAS only £200 p.a, and then for statistically meaningless low single figure accident reductions at only one site of each type.

5/ That VAS cost £800 p.a. compared to camera at close to £50,000 pa (both averaged over an entirely reasonable 10-year period), combined with the greater effectiveness of VAS confirm an overall cost effectiveness advantage of VAS of the order of at least 50 to 1, not 12% the other way as your report stated! (There can of course be no such thing as precise comparisons in this context, but when the disparity is more than 50 to 1, who needs precise comparisons? 

Other Points

The DfT seems largely to have ignored TRL548 ever since they published it in January 2003, despite that “large scale trial” of 61 VAS sites having showed at least similar and arguably significantly greater benefits at very substantially lower costs. How many of the areas that have been refused cameras since then, on the grounds of high costs or “too few” accidents, could have benefited from VAS at  £800 p.a. each? How many lives have been lost or injuries incurred because the DfT chose to blunder on with its beloved cameras despite the clear evidence in TRL548 that VAS are so much more cost effective? 

How many drivers who have never had accidents have paid fines and received penalty points for the first time in their lives because of cameras, when reminders from signs would have been more effective – in real time? How many drivers have lost their jobs or businesses because they were banned for trivial offences involving no danger whatever? How many will continue to do so, unless and until cameras are switched off and replaced with VAS?

In rejecting my view that VAS should replace cameras, you stated that “Flashing signs have a role to play but do nothing to deter those motorists who deliberately and knowingly break the law” you seem to have lost sight of the real objective - saving lives and reducing injuries. How could you ever justify, on the basis of deterrence, installing just one speed camera when for the same money twenty, thirty or fifty VAS could be installed to far greater effect? Leaving aside the reality that the most dangerous of those drivers you wish to deter are probably driving unregistered or stolen vehicles and therefore immune to speed cameras anyway, just how many road users’ lives and limbs are you prepared to sacrifice on the altar of “deterrence”? 

Your final paragraph told me, in effect, not to bother to write to you again because you would not be re-visiting this subject for some time. I hope and expect that widespread circulation of the details of your extraordinary errors – and indeed your even more extraordinary failure to acknowledge them when I brought them to your attention, will not only ensure that all involved in the road safety policy decisions, including camera partnerships, Chief Constables, MPs, local authorities, motoring organisations and the media – will recognise that you were seriously mistaken but also that you will find yourself re-visiting this issue sooner than you think. I would be happy to give evidence when you do.

Yours faithfully,

Idris Francis
